

Enterprise for WINDOWS 2000/XP/2003

Blue Squirrel ● www.bluesquirrel.com ●© 1995-2006 ● 686 E. 8400 South, Sandy Utah 84070

COPYRIGHT

© 2006 Blue Squirrel

All rights reserved. No parts of this work may be reproduced in any form or by any means - graphic, electronic, or mechanical, including photocopying, recording, taping, or information storage and retrieval systems - without the written permission of the publisher.

The Blue Squirrel stylized logo, and ClickBook stylized logo are trademarks of Blue Squirrel Software. Products that are referred to in this document may be either trademarks and/or registered trademarks of the respective owners. The publisher and the author make no claim to these trademarks.

While every precaution has been taken in the preparation of this document, the publisher and the author assume no responsibility for errors or omissions, or for damages resulting from the use of information contained in this document or from the use of programs and source code that may accompany it. In no event shall the publisher and the author be liable for any loss of profit or any other commercial damage caused or alleged to have been caused directly or indirectly by this document.

Printed: May 2006

Information in this document is subject to change without notice and does not represent a commitment on the part of Blue Squirrel. The software described herein, including all associated documentation and data, is the exclusive property of Blue Squirrel or its suppliers and is furnished only under a license agreement defining the terms and conditions governing its use by licensee. It is against the law to copy the software except as specifically allowed in the license agreement. No part of this document may be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means, including without limitation graphic, electronic, photocopy, facsimile, taping or mechanical reproduction of any kind without the prior written approval of Blue Squirrel.

Use of this product is subject to the terms of the accompanying License Agreement as stated in the back of this book.

U.S. Government Restricted Rights Legend

The Software and documentation are provided with RESTRICTED RIGHTS. Use, duplication, or disclosure by the Government is subject to restrictions as set forth in subparagraph (c) (1) of the Rights in Technical Data and Computer Software clause at DFARS 52.277-7013 or in subparagraph (c) (1) (ii) and (20) of Commercial Computer Software-Restricted Rights at 48 CFR 52.227-19, as applicable. Contractor/manufacturer is Blue Squirrel Software, 686 E. 8400 South, Sandy, UT 84070.

Special thanks to:

Blue Squirrel Software would like to acknowledge all of the Blue Squirrel staff (Web and Product Development, Sales, Customer Service, Technical Support, and Marketing) that made this program possible.

Blue Squirrel Software would also like to acknowledge Brother International Corporation, Epson, Hewlett Packard, and Lexmark International for their assistance. Thanks to their assistance, we can fully support the printer products produced by these companies and offer you, our mutual customer, the highest possible level of compatibility and user support.

Blue Squirrel 686 E. 8400 South Sandy, UT 84070 801-352-1551 www.bluesquirrel.com

I

Table of Contents

Part I	Getting Started	3
1	What Does ClickBook Enterprise Do?	3
2	How Does ClickBook Enterprise Work?	3
3	Configuring a Workstation	4
4	Printing With ClickBook Enterprise	4
5	Preparing A Document In Its Application Program	4
Part II	Installation	5
1	Registering Electronically	5
2	Registering Manually	6
3	Duplexing Printer	6
4	Changing the Default Layouts	6
5	Update ClickBook Enterprise	6
6	Change Update Settings	7
7	Uninstalling ClickBook Enterprise	7
Part III	Printing with ClickBook Enterprise	8
1	Layout Wizard	9
2	Modify Layout	9
3	Assemble a Booklet	. 11
4	Cutting And Assembling a Booklet	. 12
Part IV	Advanced Options	13
1	Insert A Header	. 14
2	Insert A Footer	. 14
3	Insert A Watermark	15
4	Add Page Numbers	. 17
Part V	Layouts	17
1	Types Of Layouts	. 17
2	Selecting A Layout	18
3	Creating Or Modifying A Layout	19
Part VI	Glossary	19
Part VII	Support	21
Part VIII	License	22

I

Index

25

1 Getting Started

ClickBook Enterprise is so easy to use. Just choose File / Print from any program and choose the shared "ClickBook Printer" when printing.

ClickBook Enterprise only needs to be installed on your print server. Other workstations will print to a shared "ClickBook Printer" to use ClickBook Enterprise.

1.1 What Does ClickBook Enterprise Do?



ClickBook Enterprise uses your shared duplexing printer to create booklets and flip-books.

An entire organization can use a single shared duplexing printer to create their booklets. The program is installed on the print server only.

With the default settings, a portrait document will be printed as a booklet, and a landscape document will be printed as a flip-book. If you wish to use the other layouts like 4-up, you can change the default layouts.

1.2 How Does ClickBook Enterprise Work?



ClickBook Enterprise takes what you print from your application – exactly what would print if you were not using ClickBook Enterprise – and shrinks and rearranges the pages to fit the layout you choose.

ClickBook Enterprise does not change any formatting done by the application program. Each page is preserved exactly as the application sent it, including margins, page numbering, headers/footers, and all paragraph formatting – everything.

ClickBook Enterprise formats your document in some or all of the following ways, depending on the

printout layout you select and any modifications you may make to it:

- Shrinking to fit several pages on one sheet of paper.
- Arranging the mini-pages so that they come out in numerical order after cutting and assembling.
- Printing double sided.
- Adding extra space for binding.
- Adding Headers, Footers or Watermarks (if desired).

1.3 Configuring a Workstation

To configure a workstation to use ClickBook, connect to the shared ClickBook Printer on the server. You do not need to install any software on each workstation. You simply connect to the shared ClickBook Printer on the server.

Steps:

- 1. Start -> Settings -> Printers and Faxes -> Add Printer
- 2. Choose "A Network Printer" when prompted for which type of printer to add.
- Enter the server name like \\MYSERVER\ClickBook Printer (replace MYSERVER with the name of your server)

1.4 Printing With ClickBook Enterprise

The ClickBook Enterprise printing process begins in your application program. You prepare your document as usual, and then you give the print command. Choose the shared "ClickBook Printer" and press Print button to send the print job to the shared printer.

If you have not added the shared printer to your workstation, see Configuring a Workstation.

1.5 Preparing A Document In Its Application Program

Prepare your document as you usually do, but keep in mind that ClickBook Enterprise will usually shrink the pages. (ClickBook Enterprise will scale them down unless the layout is full-sized or uses the No scaling setting.)

If you plan to use a layout that shrinks the pages considerably, enlarge your fonts accordingly. They should be large enough to be readable at the mini-page size. Normally, no other special preparation is needed for printing with ClickBook Enterprise. But in some cases you may want to adjust the document in the following ways:

- Use a different font that may scale better. We recommend True Type fonts, which are fully scalable.
- When printing a multi-document booklet, modify or add headers/footers that are appropriate for the booklet. In particular, you may want to adjust page numbering to be continuous throughout the whole booklet. See... Headers/footers for a multi-document booklet.
- Turn off right justification of text if the right edge came out uneven on the printout.
- Adjust the margins (or set margins in ClickBook Enterprise).
- Select No scaling and then set everything at exactly the size you want it to print. This includes setting fonts at desired sizes, and setting the page size to be equal to the mini-page size in the intended ClickBook Enterprise layout ClickBook Enterprise usually assures that the pages fit the mini-pages, but with scaling off, this is your responsibility.

2 Installation

The installation setup program for Windows is called ClickBook EnterpriseSetup.exe. You must run the setup program to install ClickBook Enterprise on your print server. You do not need to install ClickBook Enterprise on each workstation. See Configuring a Workstation for more information on setting up each workstation to use ClickBook Enterprise.

2.1 Registering Electronically

Make sure you have an active connection to the Internet so you can submit your registration online.

InstantX X					
Purchase / VIP Key InstantUpdate InstantX Settings					
Name: Wilma Raye Company:					
Address: 12565 South 1200 West Address2:					
City/State/Postal: Naples FL 85657					
<u>I</u> elephone: 702-695-4078 <u>F</u> ax:					
✓ Mail: Joint and Control of New products and upgrades					
To receive a VIP key please purchase the program.					
Here Enter the VIP key to unlock the software.					
VIP Key: CB7R • JKDS					
OK Cancel					

The first time you run ClickBook Enterprise, the InstantX Registration dialog box appears. If the InstantX Registration dialog box does not appear you can access it by selecting Tools, and VIP Key... from the ClickBook Enterprise Menu Bar.

Enter in your customer information, and your VIP Key. Then press the OK button to submit your information over the Internet.

Note: You must insert your VIP Key in the appropriate field of the Registration information screen to fully enable ClickBook Enterprise. If you do not enter your VIP Key, your program will run as an evaluation copy that continually requests the VIP Key, and eventually expires.

Users for whom the electronic registration does not work please register manually.

2.2 Registering Manually

If you are unable to register electronically, please follow these steps to Register Manually.

- 1. Access the InstantX Registration Screen by selecting Tools, and VIP Key... from the ClickBook Enterprise Menu Bar.
- 2. Enter in your customer information, and your VIP Key and then Print the form instead of sending it over the Internet.
- 3. Either fax the printout to Blue Squirrel at 801-912-6032, or send it via post mail to Blue Squirrel, Attn. Customer Service, 686 E. 8400 South, Sandy, UT 84070.

2.3 Duplexing Printer

ClickBook Enterprise requires a duplexing printer. A duplexing printer is a printer that is capable of printing on both sides of a piece of paper without the operator manually flipping the paper over.

2.4 Changing the Default Layouts

With the default settings, a portrait document will be printed as a booklet, and a landscape document will be printed as a flip-book.

If you would like to use a different layout for portrait, open ClickBook Enterprise on the print server and choose *Layouts->Set Default Layouts*.

Choose the layout you would like when the workstations print a portrait document. Then choose a layout you would like when the workstations print a portrait document. Hit the Set Defaults button to save your settings.

2.5 Update ClickBook Enterprise

If you are connected to the Internet ClickBook Enterprise will automatically check for, and download available updates. By default, ClickBook Enterprise will go online and check every 30 days.

🚺 Untitled - ClickBo			
<u>F</u> ile <u>L</u> ayouts ⊻iew	<u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp		
	Options		
	Insert a <u>b</u> lank page		
	<u>D</u> elete a page		
	Temporary Job Settings		
	<u>P</u> urchase		
	<u>V</u> IP Key		
	<u>U</u> pdate	۲	Update <u>N</u> ow!
			<u>U</u> ndo Last Update
			<u>S</u> ettings

To check for a new version, and download an update follow the steps below:

- 1. Open ClickBook Enterprise from the Microsoft Window's Start menu, select Programs, Blue Squirrel, and ClickBook Enterprise.
- 2. From the Menu Bar go to Tools, select Update, and choose Update Now.

6

- 3. ClickBook Enterprise will go online and look for available updates.
- 4. If there are available updates you'll be presented with the option to download the newest version.

2.6 Change Update Settings

By default ClickBook Enterprise checks for available updates every 30 days.

You can alter the Update settings to your liking by following these steps.

InstantX		×
Purchase / VIP Key	InstantUpdate InstantX Settings Update Options Always <u>Ask Before Updating</u> Update <u>W</u> ithout Asking	
Check	for upgrades every 30 💌 day(s)	
	OK Cancel	

- 1. Open ClickBook Enterprise from the Microsoft Window's Start menu, select Programs, Blue Squirrel, and ClickBook Enterprise.
- 2. From the Menu Bar go to Tools, select Update, and choose Settings.
- 3. The Instant X dialog appears. Click on the InstantUpdate tab.
- 4. Select a preferred radio button for Ask Before Updating or Update Without Asking.
- 5. Choose how often to check for updates.
- 6. When you are finished press OK.

2.7 Uninstalling ClickBook Enterprise

To uninstall ClickBook Enterprise from your computer please follow these steps:

- 1. Click the Microsoft Windows Start button on and select Settings, Control Panel from the Start Menu.
- Double click the Add/Remove Programs Icon, and the Windows Add/Remove Programs Properties dialog box appears.
- 3. Select Blue Squirrel ClickBook Enterprise in the list of software available, and click the Add/Remove button.

ClickBook Enterprise Help File

8

- 4.
- The following dialog confirms your request to uninstall. If you are certain you want to uninstall ClickBook Enterprise click the Yes button. 5.

3 **Printing with ClickBook Enterprise**

9

3.1 Layout Wizard

The Layout Wizard is a simplified process to change settings for a particular Layout.

To use the Layout Wizard proceed as follows:

- 1. Open the Layout Wizard. From the Menu Bar select layouts and click on the Layout Wizard.
- 3. Make desired changes and click Next to proceed through the steps.
- 4. If, at any time, you want to quit the Layout Wizard click Cancel.

Layout Wizard - Step 1						
Welcome to the Layout Wizard.			1	,		
This wizard is designed to help you make or modify layouts to use in ClickBook.						
The graphic in the upper right hand corner represents the layout. This graphic will change as you modify the properties of the layout.						
— — The large dashed lines represent cut edges.		4	1			
The small dashed lines represent folded edges.				,		
The light blue areas define where the margins appear.						
First pick a layout that is similar to the one you want to modify.	tegoi	ries				
				•		
Lay	youts	\$				
IS	ide-l	By-Side (folded	i)	•		
< <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext	t>		<u>C</u> ance	el		

3.2 Modify Layout

The Modify Layout dialog box allows the user to make permanent changes to any layout format. It also allows the user to save their changes as a new layout by selecting Save As or to save their changes over an existing layout by clicking done.

To access the Modify Layout dialog go to Layouts on the menu bar, and select Modify Layouts.

Modify Layout	×
Booklet Style Sheet Orientation : Mini-pgs. on Sheet : Booklet Type : Image: Constraint in the state in	
Binding Printer Paper Size : Letter Binding Edge : Print Sides : Standard Flip Double Sided	4 1
Sub Booklets Scaling Repeat Absolute Dimensions Scaling : Sub-booklets Width : 5.50 " Stretch to fit 1 Pgs. per Height : 8.50 " Centered	Categories All Layouts !Side-By-Side (folded)
Margins Mini-page Margins : Top : 0.00 '' Left : 0.00 '' Bottom : 0.00 '' Right : 0.00 ''	Change Icon No Red Lines Layout Description: This layout was designed to make a folded book with 4 mini-pages to 1 sheet of paper. It is typically used on documents of 4 to 80 pages. It can be
Save <u>A</u> s <u>D</u> one <u>Ab</u> andon Changes	<u>H</u> elp <u>C</u> ancel

- Booklet Style:
 - Booklet Type Select a booklet style such as Cut book, Folded book, French fold, Planner pages, Poster, Tiled, and Tri-fold.
 - Anti-Shingle In large folded booklets with more than 10 sheets of paper the edges start to creep out in the center until the edge looks like a V. We call this shingling. ClickBook Enterprise can move the page towards the center so you can cut off excess paper without cutting into printed text.
 - Mini-pgs. on Sheet Select how many pages to put on a single sheet of paper.
 - Sheet Orientation Select if you want the sheet to print in Portrait or Landscape Orientation.
- Binding
 - **Printer Paper Size** Select the size of paper you want to use. This will override the default setting that is under Tools->Options.
 - Binding Edge Choose how you want the binding edge.
 - Print Sides Select to print on one side or both sides of paper.
- Sub Booklets
 - **Repeat** The effect of Repeat depends on the current Layout. Repeat can be used to print more copies when there aren't enough mini-pages to fill the sheet. Repeat can also be used, alternatively, to avoid the step of assembling multiple booklets.
 - **Sub-Booklets** Rather than folding a whole booklet together, you may wish to print and fold sub-booklets separately, and then bind them together. Mark the check box to activate sub-booklet printing. Then set Pages-per to the number of pages you want each sub-booklet to contain.
- Scaling
 - Absolute Dimensions ClickBook Enterprise sets the Mini-page dimensions to fill a sheet of

paper. You can set the dimensions by turning on Absolute Dimensions.

- Width Specify the width to match a custom page size.
- Height Specify the height to match a custom page size.
- Scaling Choose the type of scaling to use, either One to One, No Scaling, or Stretch to fit.
- Margins
 - Paper Margins Allows you to change the margins for a sheet of paper.
- Mini-Page Margins Allows you to change the mini-page margins for the current Layout.
- Save As... Opens the Save As dialog box to save the layout with a new name.
- Done Saves any changes made to the current Layout.
- Abandon Changes Reverts to the layout's previous settings.
- Cancel Closes the Modify Layouts dialog.

If you set the Booklet Type to Poster (Windows XP, 2000, 2003 only), you get other options:

- Paper Orientation This lets you choose the orientation of the pages in the poster.
- **Pages on Poster** This specifies how many pages will be printed per poster. Across specifies the number of pages going horizontally, and Down specifies the number of pages going vertically.
- **Poster Margins** The top and left margins specify how far over the poster will begin printing from the upper-left corner of the first piece of paper. In most cases it makes sense to leave these at 0, unless you are missing part of your poster because of the non-printable area of your printer.
- **Poster Cropping** This will stretch your document to fit the poster in one direction and crop off the other dimension if the document does not fit exactly.
- Scaling (Width/Height) This is the total width and height of the poster after assembly.
- **Overlap** This specifies how much overlap in each poster page. The pages intentionally overlap because most printers cannot print to the edge of the paper so there would be white gaps on the poster. You should trim off the white non-printable area before taping the poster together.

3.3 Assemble a Booklet

To turn on the Assembly Instructions:



- 1. Click the Options button Options on the toolbar. This will bring up the Options dialog box.
- 2. Choose the Print Settings tab and click in the box next to Print assembly instructions.
- 3. Click OK.

3.4 Cutting And Assembling a Booklet



The cut marks on the printout are guidelines that show between which mini-pages to cut. Their position is accurate to about 1/16", which is not high precision for very small mini-pages. Use your eye or measure, in order to cut precisely halfway between mini-pages.

The marks themselves tell you the order of the cuts. The solid line indicates the first cut, the line composed of two dashes indicates the second, the line composed of three dashes indicates the third, and so on.

The instructions below, or those printed with the printout, include the important information about how to re-stack the cut sheets after each cut. They give the general rules for cutting and assembling any book of any layout.

12

- 1. If the mini-pages do not fill the sheet (that is, if you specified absolute mini-page dimensions), the first step is to cut away the extra paper. If there is no extra to cut away, skip to step 4.
- 2. Cut at the "one-dash" cut mark, which indicates a vertical cut to eliminate extra paper on the right. Discard the extraneous strips.
- 3. Cut at the "two dash" cut mark, which indicates a horizontal cut to eliminate extra paper at the bottom. Discard the extraneous strips.
- 4. Make the leftmost vertical cut. (Look for the next cut mark. Depending on whether you did steps 1.a. and/or 1.b., this may be composed of one, two or three dashes.)
- 5. Now your printout is split into two stacks. Place the one with page 1 on top of the other, aligning the top left corners.
- 6. Make the leftmost remaining vertical cut, if any.
- 7. Again, place the page 1 stack on top of the other, with top left corners together.
- 8. Continue in the same way until all vertical cuts have been made.
- 9. Make the top horizontal cut.
- 10. Place the page 1 stack on top of the other, with top left corners together.
- 11. Make the topmost remaining horizontal cut if any.
- 12. Place the page 1 stack on top of the other, with the top left corners together.
- 13. Continue in the same way until all horizontal cuts have been made.
- 14. Be sure to fold and/or bind on the edge indicated by your choice of layout, namely binding on the left for a Standard book, or on top for a Flip book. For a folded booklet layout: Remove blank mini-sheets, if any, from the middle. Fold in half and staple. For a cut book layout: Remove blank mini-pages, if any from the end. Then bind.

Cutting options:

Paper Trimmer - See our paper trimmers at http://www.bluesquirrel.com/so/trimmer/

Binding options:

Staple (also called a saddle stitch) - See our specialized staplers at http://www.bluesquirrel.com/clickbook/staplers.asp

4 Advanced Options

4.1 Insert A Header

14

You can add a header to the top position of each mini page. You can select a separate font, color and size for each type. We have also provided four buttons that will insert the print job name, date, time and page number into the header.

Job – <job> inserts the name of the first job listed in the Print Job bar

Date – <date> inserts the current date the job was printed using this format "month dd, yyyy" Time – <time> inserts the current time the job was printed using this format "hh:mm AM/PM" Page – <#> inserts the current mini-page number

The fonts are scaled to match the mini-page they are used on; for example a 36 point font would be scaled down by a factor of 4 when used on a mini-page that is 4 times smaller than a regular sheet of paper. This makes it easy to set up a header, footer, or watermark that can be used for different booklet types as the text will be automatically sized for each booklet.

To place a Header on your current print job follow these steps:

- 1. Click the Options button on the toolbar. This will bring up the Options dialog box.
- 2. Select the Headers tab.
- 3. In order to print a header a check must be placed next to the Print Headers field. Note: Header can be permanently shut off by un-checking the "Print Headers" checkbox.
- 5. Type your message in the text field box and/or select any of the following buttons
 - Job: places the title of the first print job listed in the Print Job window.
 - Date: Places today's date.
 - Time: Places the current time.
 - Page: Places the page Numbers.
- 6. To change the look and feel of the Header click the Select Font button. The Font window will open and from here the Font, Font Style, Size, Effects, Color, and Script can all be changed. The Sample window will demonstrate how the changes will appear.
- 7. The Text justification allows you to choose where the Header will be placed: right, left, or center. Place a mark next to the desired position.
- 8. The Start printing Headers on page option allows you to choose which page the Headers will begin. Note: This feature allows you to start the process of printing Headers on the mini-page of your choice. This is useful for when you have a cover page and you don't want the page number to be printed on that page. Please note that the page numbering will start on the page you choose. For example if you start on page 3 it will be numbered as 1, page 4 will be 2 and so on.
- 9. The Stop printing Headers on page option allows you to choose which page the Headers will end. Note: The default setting of 0 will end the printing of Headers on the last page.
- 10. Click Apply Changes to view any modifications you have made to your headers. The changes will appear in the print preview window. If the changes are acceptable Click OK. Headers will now be placed on your print job.

Note: Headers are not printed on posters.

4.2 Insert A Footer

Adding a Footer will place a line of text in the bottom position of each mini-page. You can select a separate font, color and size for each type. We have also provided 4 buttons that will insert the print job name, date, time and page number into the footer.

- Job <job> inserts the name of the first job listed in the Print Job bar
- Date <date> inserts the current date the job was printed using this format "month dd, yyyy"
- Time <time> inserts the current time the job was printed using this format "hh:mm AM/PM"

• Page - <#> inserts the current mini-page number

The fonts are scaled to match the mini-page they are used on; for example a 36 point font would be scaled down by a factor of 4 when used on a mini-page that is 4 times smaller than a regular sheet of paper. This makes it easy to set up a header, footer, or watermark that can be used for different booklet types as the text will be automatically sized for each booklet.

To place a Footer on your current print job follow these steps:

- 1. Click on the Options button on the toolbar. This will bring up the Options dialog box.
- 2. Select the Headers, Footers, and Watermarks tab.
- In order to print a header a check must be placed next to the Print Headers, Footers, & Watermarks field. Note: Header, Footers, and Watermarks can be permanently shut off by unchecking the "Print Headers, Footers, & Watermarks " checkbox.
- 4. From the drop down menu select Footer.
- 5. Type your message in the text field box and/or select any of the following buttons:
- Job: places the title of the first print job listed in the Print Job window.
- Date: Places today's date.
- Time: Places the current time.
- Page: Places the page Numbers.
- 6. To change the look and feel of the Footer click the Select Font button. The Font window will open and from here the Font, Font Style, Size, Effects, Color, and Script can all be changed. The Sample window will demonstrate how the changes will appear.
- 7. The Text justification allows you to choose where the Footer will be placed: right, left, or center. Place a mark next to the desired position.
- 8. The Start printing Headers, Footers, and Watermarks on page option allows you to choose which page the Headers, Footers, and Watermarks will begin. Note: This feature allows you to start the process of printing Headers, Footers, and Watermarks on the mini-page of your choice. This is useful for when you have a cover page and you don't want the page number to be printed on that page. Please note that the page numbering will start on the page you choose. For example if you start on page 3 it will be numbered as 1, page 4 will be 2 and so on.
- 9. The Stop printing Headers, Footers, and Watermarks on page option allows you to choose which page the Headers Footers, and Watermarks will end. Note: The default setting of 0 will end the printing of Headers, Footers, and Watermarks on the last page.
- 10. Click Apply Changes to view any modifications you have made to your headers, footers, or watermarks. The changes will appear in the print preview window. If the changes are acceptable
- 11. Click OK. Footers will now be placed on your print job.

Note: Footers are not printed on posters.

4.3 Insert A Watermark

Adding a Watermark will add a graphic or text in the diagonal position of each mini-page. You can select a separate font, color and size for each type. We have also provided 4 buttons that will insert the print job name, date, time and page number into the watermark.

- Job <job> inserts the name of the first job listed in the Print Job bar
- Date <date> inserts the current date the job was printed using this format "month dd, yyyy"
- Time <time> inserts the current time the job was printed using this format "hh:mm AM/PM"
- Page <#> inserts the current mini-page number

The fonts are scaled to match the mini-page they are used on; for example a 36 point font would be scaled down by a factor of 4 when used on a mini-page that is 4 times smaller than a regular sheet of paper. This makes it easy to set up a header, footer, or watermark that can be used for different

booklet types as the text will be automatically sized for each booklet.

Note: Watermark graphics must be in bitmap (.bmp) format. The graphic colors will not be changed in any way and will appear the same way it does in your graphic editor. You may want to lighten up the graphic before using it as a watermark so the text in front of it does not get washed out. You can do this with most graphic editors and word processors. ClickBook Enterprise uses a point for point system for sizing the graphic and will allow you to scale the watermark from 10 times its original size to 1/10 its original size. For example, a 600 by 600 pixel graphic would be 1 inch on a mini-page using a 600 dpi (dots per inch) printer. To make the graphic 2 ½ inches or 2 ½ times bigger enter 2.5 in the edit box below the Graphic button.

To place a Watermark on your current print job follow these steps:



- 1. Click on the Options button Options on the toolbar. This will bring up the Options dialog box.
- 2. Select the Headers, Footers, and Watermarks tab.
- In order to print a header a check must be placed next to the Print Headers, Footers, & Watermarks field. Note: Header, Footers, and Watermarks can be permanently shut off by unchecking the "Print Headers, Footers, & Watermarks " checkbox.
- 4. From the drop down menu select Watermark.
- 5. Now select the desired radio button to include a Text or Graphic Watermark.
- 6. If Text has been chosen you may now decide what information is to be placed in the Watermark. Options include placing the following:
 - Job: places the title of the first print job listed in the Print Job window.
 - Date: Places today's date.
 - Time: Places the current time.
 - Page: Places the page Numbers.
 - Textbox: Type text as you want it to appear.
- 7. To change the look and feel of the Watermark click the Select Font button. The Font window will open and from here the Font, Font Style, Size, Effects, Color, and Script can all be changed. The sample window will demonstrate how the changes will appear.
- 8. If Graphic has been chosen you can browse to the location of the image and select it or type the location of the image in the text field.
- 9. The Scale watermark graphic times the original size field allows you to make the image larger or smaller as desired.
- 10. The Start printing Headers, Footers, and Watermarks on page option allows you to choose which page the Headers, Footers, and Watermarks will begin. Note: This feature allows you to start the process of printing Headers, Footers, and Watermarks on the mini-page of your choice. This is useful for when you have a cover page and you don't want the page number to be printed on that page. Please note that the page numbering will start on the page you choose. For example, if you start on page 3 it will be numbered as 1, page 4 will be 2 and so on.
- 11. The Stop printing Headers, Footers, and Watermarks on page option allows you to choose which page the Headers Footers, and Watermarks will end. Note: The default setting of 0 will end the printing of Headers, Footers, and Watermarks on the last page.
- 12. Click Apply Changes to view any modifications you have made to your headers, footers, or watermarks. The changes will appear in the print preview window. If the changes are acceptable click OK. A Watermark will now be placed on your print job.

Note: Watermarks are not printed on posters.

4.4 Add Page Numbers

To Add Page Numbers to your ClickBook Enterprise printouts follow these steps:



- 1. Click on the Options button Options on the Toolbar, or click Tools on the Menu bar and select Options.
- 2. In the Options dialog box click the box next to Print Headers, Footers, & Watermarks.
- 3. Click the Page button. ClickBook Enterprise will place the code <#> in the text box. You can add any additional text you want to appear before or after the page number.
- 4. Click OK. Page numbers will now be placed in the top center position on each mini page for your print job.

5 Layouts

5.1 Types Of Layouts

This topic will be easy to understand if you read it while looking at ClickBook Enterprise's Print Preview screen. Select various layouts in turn, and compare each one.

What is a Layout?

A layout is a blueprint for a particular booklet, which is defined by a group of detailed settings that tell ClickBook Enterprise how to arrange the mini-pages on a sheet of paper. Some of the essential details are whether the paper orientation is portrait or landscape, how many mini-pages are printed across and down on one sheet, whether to print single or double-sided, margin sizes, and added space for binding.

Booklet Styles

Each layout also has a certain booklet style. This relates to how you intend to assemble and bind the booklet, and tells ClickBook Enterprise the order to print the mini-pages so they will end up in the right order in your finished booklet. There are six booklet styles: <u>Cut book, Folded book, French fold,</u> <u>Planner pages, Tiled, and Tri-fold</u>. You can determine a layout's booklet style by its name, the corresponding picture, and by looking at the Booklet Style in the Modify Layouts tab.



<u>Cut book Layouts</u> are for methods of binding that require cutting between facing pages. Most of the cut book layouts shipped with ClickBook Enterprise are designed for paper that's preperforated for a custom appointment-book page.



Examples include the "Address book (folded)", "Wallet book (folded)", and "Side-by-side (folded)" layouts.



French fold layouts are for making greeting cards from standard paper by folding the printed sheet in fourths. The French fold style expects exactly four pages per sheet.



Planner page Layouts are designed for day planner paper that has holes on the left and right hand sides.



Posters are designed to expand one page onto multiple pages to make it larger. It requires some trimming and taping, but you can make some impressive posters.



<u>Tiled layouts</u> are designed for multiple pages on a sheet but not cutting the sheet. The sheets that come out of the printer are the final sheets. There are two sequences in which the minipages can be printed in a tiled layout. These are controlled by the Binding Orientation options in the Modify Layouts dialog.

- Row-wise means page 2 prints to the right of page 1. For row-wise order, select the Standard binding orientation.
- Column-wise means pages 2 prints below of page 1. For column-wise order, select the Flip binding orientation.



<u>Tri-fold Layouts</u> are for printing single-sheet brochures or leaflets which are folded twice, making three panels (mini-pages) on each side of the paper. The tri-fold style expects exactly six pages per brochure, since this style of brochure is a single sheet of paper, folded. Tri-fold pagination places pages 5, 6, and 1 on one side, and pages 2, 3, and 4 on the other side. The front panel is thus page 1, and the reader opens up the brochure to see pages 2, 3, and 4 inside, and then turns the sheet over to read pages 5 and 6.

5.2 Selecting A Layout

Answering the following series of questions will help you decide which layout you want.

- Is your document oriented as portrait or landscape? You should choose a layout that orients the mini-pages in the same way. Look at the picture for each layout to determine its mini-page orientation. (ClickBook Enterprise will warn you if you choose a layout that doesn't match.
- What sort of booklet do you want to print?
- How large do you want your finished mini-pages to be? Mini-pages determine how many pages you want to include on a single sheet of paper, and how to fit them on the size of paper you're using. For examples look through the tiled or booklet layouts. To choose a layout with an appropriate number of mini-pages, look at the print preview picture.
- What size do you want your fonts and graphics to appear? Small booklets usually require that you enlarge the fonts and graphics, unless you choose to use No Scaling. If you choose No Scaling enlargement must be done in your application program and then print the document to ClickBook Enterprise again. If you want to enlarge the fonts in ClickBook Enterprise refer to adjustable Mini-

pages.

To Select a Layout:

- 1. Print your document to ClickBook Enterprise. For step-by-step instructions refer to Printing Your First Booklet.
- 2. In the Print Preview screen Browse through the Category drop down menu to quickly find layouts that match your document type. For example, if you're printing a side-by-side folded booklet choose the Books category. Or if you're printing your contact list to insert in your Day Planner, choose Personal Organizers, or Franklin Covey Paper.
- 3. Use the Layout drop down menu to browse through the available Layouts, and select one that matches your document.
- 4. To see the settings for a particular layout, select Layouts on the Menu bar and click on Modify Layouts.

5.3 Creating Or Modifying A Layout

To create a custom layout you will modify, rename, and save an existing one by following these steps:

- 1. Print your document to ClickBook Enterprise. For step-by-step instructions refer to Printing Your First Booklet.
- 2. From the menu bar open layouts and select either Layout Wizard or Modify Layout. Please refer to either topic for more details.
- 3. Choose a layout that is similar to what you want.
- 4. Change any settings to create just the layout you want.
- 5. When you are finished making adjustments click the Save As button and save the new layout with a different name.

To modify an existing Layout proceed with the following steps:

- 1. Print your document to ClickBook Enterprise. For step-by-step instructions refer to Printing Your First Booklet.
- 2. From the menu bar open layouts and select either Layout Wizard or Modify Layout. Lets choose Modify Layout for this particular exercise.
- 3. The Modify Layout dialog appears. Choose a Category and Layout from the drop down menus that are similar to what you want.
- 4. Make desired changes by adjusting margins, scaling, mini-page margins, how many mini-pages you would like to appear on a single sheet of paper and so forth.
- Click Save As to save your changes to a new layout or Done to replace the old one. Click Abandon Changes to undo all of the changes you haven't yet saved. The Layout will revert back to its original settings.
- 6. Examine your changed Layout in the Print Preview picture to see how your document is affected. If you are satisfied with how the booklet looks, click Print. If you are not satisfied repeat steps 2 through 4 to further adjust the layout.

Note: Blue Squirrel recommends making a backup of your Layouts before altering them. You can do this by copying the Layouts folder to a new name or to a backup disk. The default directory is C:\Program Files\Blue Squirrel\ClickBook Enterprise\Layouts. Then, if you ever need to revert to the default Layouts, just restore the original files.

6 Glossary

- Aspect Ratio The ratio of width to height. If the aspect ratio changes then photographs can appear stretched or squeezed.
- Binding Edge A standard binding edge is for right/left. A flip binding edge is for folding top/bottom.
- Crop Cropping chops off portions of a document.

20

- **Duplex** Printing on both sides of the paper. Many printers include a duplexer that allows the printer to print on both sides of the paper without human intervention. ClickBook supports printers with duplexers.
- Header Text that will be printed at the top of every mini-page. It may include page numbers, job name, date, etc.
- Footer Text that will be printed at the bottom of every mini-page. It may include page numbers, job name, date, etc.
- Landscape A paper orientation where the words on the page are going across the long edge of the paper. See Portrait.
- Layout A specific configuration of ClickBook that turns a print out in to a poster, booklet, card, brochure, etc.
- **Mini-Pages** The area on a piece of paper that the source document pages will be placed. Example: One piece of paper would have 4 mini-pages for a folded booklet. Two mini-pages on each side of the piece of paper.
- **One-to-One** A Scaling option that keeps the shape. This scaling option is better for photos.
- **Overlap** When printing Banners or Posters, some extra is printed on each page to allow easy alignment of the pages when assembling the poster or banner.
- **Portrait** A paper orientation where the words on the page are going across the short edge of the paper. See Landscape.
- Sample Document A document that works with a set of layouts. The many samples included with ClickBook show how the document works with ClickBook to create a print out.
- **Scaling** Stretching or shrinking a document to fit an area on a piece of paper. One-to-one scaling will keep the aspect ratio.
- Stretch-to-Fit Stretches the source document to fit the new area. If the area is not the same shape, the document may need to be stretched more in one direction. This is usually fine for text, but leads to photos that may look stretched or squeezed.
- **Sub-booklets** Breaking a full booklet print job into smaller booklets that can be individually folded, stacked and bound.
- VIP Key A key that removes the trial stamps and fully activates the software.
- Watermark A graphic that is printed on every mini-page. This can be used for document authenticity, or to print a company logo.
- Workstation A computer that does not have a printer attached, but prints to the shared ClickBook Printer to create booklets.

7 Support



Technical Support

If you are having difficulties using ClickBook Enterprise, please check the following:

The problem may be with the printer. See whether the problem still occurs when you (A) print without ClickBook, or (B) print on a different printer. If the problem still occurs in case A, or goes away in case B, the problem is with your printer or its driver.

Frequently, problems observed in applications actually are based in the operating system. Does your problem occur in other applications as well? Do any other symptoms suggest that the problem may be in Windows? If so, you need Windows technical support.

Read the accompanying ReadMe.rtf file for any late breaking information about ClickBook Enterprise, and using ClickBook Enterprise with specific software or hardware.

Visit Our Web Site

If you cannot find the information you need in any of the preceding sources, contact us at our Web site. Please refer to ClickBook's support and FAQs for frequently asked questions. http://www.bluesquirrel.com/support/

Contact Us

If you would like to speak with a Blue Squirrel representative regarding a non-technical question please call Customer Service at:

Customer Service

Toll Free: 800-403-0925 Telephone: 801-352-1551 Fax: 801-912-6032 E-mail: sales@bluesquirrel.com

Note: Hours are: 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Mountain Standard Time.

Mailing address

Blue Squirrel 686 E. 8400 South Sandy, UT 84070

8 License

THE BLUE SQUIRREL END USER LICENSE AGREEMENT REDISTRIBUTION NOT PERMITTED

GRANT. Subject to payment of applicable license fees, Blue Squirrel grants you a non-exclusive license to use the Software and accompanying documentation ("Documentation") in the manner described below under "Scope of Grant."

SCOPE OF GRANT

You may:

- use the Software on any single server (subject to the number of licenses purchased);
- use the Software on a network, provided that each person accessing the Software through the network must have a license;
- copy the Software for archival purposes, provided any copy must contain all of the original Software's proprietary notices; or
- if you have purchased licenses for a 10 Pack or a 50 Pack, make up to 10 or 50 copies, respectively, of the Software (but not the documentation), provided any copy must contain all of the original Software's proprietary notices. The number of copies is the total number of copies that may be made for all platforms. Additional copies of Documentation may be purchased.

You may not:

- permit other individuals to use the Software except under the terms listed above;
- permit concurrent use of the Software;
- modify, translate, reverse engineer, decompile, disassemble (except to the extent applicable laws specifically prohibit such restriction), or create derivative works based on the Software;
- copy the Software other than as specified above;
- · rent, lease, grant a security interest in, or otherwise transfer rights to the Software; or
- remove any proprietary notices or labels on the Software.

LIMITED WARRANTY.

Blue Squirrel warrants that for a period of ninety (90) days from the date of acquisition, the Software, if operated as directed, will substantially achieve the functionality described in the Documentation. Blue Squirrel does not warrant, however, that your use of the Software sufficiently meets your requirements. Blue Squirrel also warrants that the media containing the Software, if provided by Blue Squirrel, is free from defects in material and workmanship and will so remain for ninety (90) days from the date you acquired the Software. Blue Squirrel's sole liability for any breach of this warranty shall be, in Blue Squirrel's sole discretion; (i) to replace your defective media; or (ii) to advise you how to achieve substantially the same functionality with the Software as described in the Documentation through a procedure different from that set forth in the Documentation; or (iii) if the above remedies are impracticable, to refund the license fee paid for the Software, or (b) Blue Squirrel alsoftware, or if longer, for thirty (30) days first the date (a) of shipment to you of the repaired or replaced Software, or (b) Blue Squirrel advised you how to operate the Software so as to achieve the functionality described in the Documentation. Only if you inform Blue Squirrel of your problem with the Software during the applicable warranty period and provide evidence of the date you purchased a license to the Software will Blue Squirrel be obligated to honor this warranty. Blue Squirrel will use reasonable commercial efforts to repair, replace, advise or, refund pursuant to the foregoing warranty within 30 days of being so notified. IF THE SOFTWARE IS INCLUDED AS PART OF A LARGER BUNDLE, SOME OF THESE REMEDIES MAY NOT BE AVAILABLE TO YOU.

THIS IS A LIMITED WARRANTY AND IT IS THE ONLY WARRANTY MADE BY BLUE SQUIRREL. BLUE SQUIRREL MAKES NO OTHER EXPRESS WARRANTY AND NO WARRANTY OF NONINFRINGEMENT OF THIRD PARTIES' RIGHTS. THE DURATION OF IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, IS LIMITED TO THE ABOVE LIMITED WARRANTY PERIOD; SOME JURISDICTIONS DO NOT ALLOW LIMITATIONS ON HOW LONG AN IMPLIED WARRANTY LASTS, SO LIMITATIONS MAY NOT APPLY TO YOU. NO BLUE SQUIRREL DEALER, AGENT, OR EMPLOYEE IS AUTHORIZED TO MAKE ANY MODIFICATIONS, EXTENSIONS, OR ADDITIONS TO THIS WARRANTY. If any modifications are made to the Software by you during the warranty period; if the media is subjected to accident, abuse, or improper use; or if you violate the terms of this Agreement, then this warranty shall immediately be terminated. This warranty shall not apply if the Software is used on or in conjunction with hardware or software other than the unmodified version of hardware and software with which the software was designed to be used as described in the Documentation.

THIS WARRANTY GIVES YOU SPECIFIC LEGAL RIGHTS, AND YOU MAY HAVE OTHER LEGAL RIGHTS THAT VARY BY JURISDICTION.

TITLE. Title, ownership rights, and intellectual property rights in the Software shall remain in Blue Squirrel and/or its suppliers. The Software is protected by the copyright laws and treaties. Title and related rights in the content accessed through the Software is the property of the applicable content owner and may be protected by applicable law. This License gives you no rights to such content.

TERMINATION. The license will terminate automatically if you fail to comply with the limitations described herein. On termination, you must destroy all copies of the Software and Documentation.

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES AND UNDER NO LEGAL THEORY, TORT, CONTRACT, OR OTHERWISE SHALL BLUE SQUIRREL OR ITS SUPPLIERS OR RESELLERS BE LIABLE TO YOU OR ANY OTHER PERSON FOR ANY INDIRECT, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES OF ANY CHARACTER INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, DAMAGES FOR LOSS OF GOODWILL, WORK STOPPAGE, COMPUTER FAILURE OR MALFUNCTION, OR ANY AND ALL OTHER COMMERCIAL DAMAGES OR LOSSES. IN NO EVENT WILL BLUE SQUIRREL BE LIABLE FOR ANY DAMAGES IN EXCESS OF THE AMOUNT BLUE SQUIRREL RECEIVED FROM YOU FOR A LICENSE TO THE SOFTWARE, EVEN IF BLUE SQUIRREL SHALL HAVE BEEN INFORMED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES, OR FOR ANY CLAIM BY ANY OTHER PARTY. THIS LIMITATION OF LIABILITY SHALL NOT APPLY TO LIABILITY FOR DEATH OR PERSONAL INJURY TO THE EXTENT APPLICABLE LAW PROHIBITS SUCH LIMITATION. FURTHERMORE, SOME JURISDICTIONS DO NOT ALLOW THE EXCLUSION OR LIMITATION OF INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, SO THIS LIMITATION AND EXCLUSION MAY NOT APPLY TO YOU.

MISCELLANEOUS. If the copy of the Software you received was accompanied by a printed or other form of "hard copy" End User License Agreement whose terms vary from this Agreement, then the hard copy End User License Agreement governs your use of the Software. This Agreement represents the complete agreement concerning this license and may be amended only by a writing executed by both parties. THE ACCEPTANCE OF ANY PURCHASE ORDER PLACED BY YOU IS EXPRESSLY MADE CONDITIONAL ON YOUR ASSENT TO THE TERMS SET FORTH HEREIN, AND NOT THOSE IN YOUR PURCHASE ORDER. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be unenforceable, such provision shall be reformed only to the extent necessary to make it enforceable. This Agreement shall be governed by Texas law (except for conflict of law provisions). The application of the United Nations Convention of Contracts for the International Sale of Goods is expressly excluded.

U.S. GOVERNMENT RESTRICTED RIGHTS. Use, duplication or disclosure by the Government is subject to restrictions set forth in subparagraphs (a) through (d) of the Commercial Computer-Restricted Rights clause at FAR 52.227-19 when applicable, or in subparagraph (c)(1)(ii) of the Rights in Technical Data and Computer Software clause at DFARS 252.227-7013, or at 252.211-7015, and in similar clauses in the NASA FAR Supplement. Contractor/manufacturer is Blue Squirrel, 686 E. 8400 South Sandy, UT 84070.

25

Index

- A -

Assemble A Booklet 11

- C -

Change A Layout's Settings 9 Customer Service 21 Cutting And Assembling A Booklet 12

- D -

Double sided printer 6 Duplex Printer 6

- E -

End User Agreement 22

- F -

Footer 14 Format A Document 4

- H -

Header 14 How Does ClickBook Work? 3

- L -

Layout (Selecting) 18 Layout Wizard 9 Layouts (Modifying) 19 Layouts (Types of) 17 License Agreement 22

- M -

Modify Layout 9

- 0 -

Overlap 9

- P -

Page Numbering17Paper Orientation9Prepare A Document4Printer Properties6Printing With ClickBook4Properties6

- R -

Register 5 Register Manually 6

- S -

Submit Registration 5 Support 21

- T -

Technical Support 21

- U -

Uninstall ClickBook 7 Update Frequency 7 Update My Copy Of ClickBook 6 Update Settings 7 User Rights 22

- V -

VIP Key 5, 6

- W -

Watermark 15 What does ClickBook do? 3